
 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting original scheduled for December 20, 2016 

Changed to December 13, 2016 
 

McHenry Public Library District 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

 

Tuesday December 13, 2016  

7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Board Room 

 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

 

II. ROLL CALL – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

III.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV.      CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 

V.      PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECOGNITION OF VISISTORS 

 

VI.      CONSENT AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING (Action) 

SECRETARY'S REPORT – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, November 15, 2016 
         

TREASURER'S REPORT – Charles Reilly, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through  

November 30, 2016 and Bill Reports for November/December 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 
809 North Front Street 

McHenry, Illinois 60050 
Phone:  815.385.0036 

www.mchenrylibrary.org 
 

 



 

VIII. LIBRARIAN'S REPORT 
1.  Update on flooring project, solar project, RFID, CCS ILS RFP progress, hiring of 

Circ. Manager, programs and statistics, future plans, and other items. 

 

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 

dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings 

Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the November 15, 2016  

Executive Session Minutes. 

 

X. OLD BUSINESS 
1.   RFID project – discuss scheduling visits to other area libraries, RFP process  

2.   Board self-evaluation process - ongoing 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
1. Approval and release of the November 15, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. (Action) 

2. Approval of the FY2017 Public Library Per Capita Grant Application and the FY2015 

Expenditure Report. (Action) 

 

XII. ANY AND ALL OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY PROPERLY 

COME BEFORE THE BOARD 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

*Any person with a physical disability may contact the MPLD (815-385-0036) within 4 

hours of any meeting date to request special access to any board meeting.  The MPLD will 

make all board meetings accessible to people with physical disabilities under the current 

ADA requirements. 



1 

 

MINUTES 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

 

Date:       November 15, 2016 

Time:       7:00 P.M. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

Members Present:  Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Charles Reilly, Bradley 

Schubert, and Jill Stone   

 

Members Absent:   Monica Leccese 

 

Also Present:   James Scholtz, Executive Director 

  Bill Edminster, Assistant Director 

 Debbie Gunness, Business Manager 

 

I. Call to Order: 

President Beaderstadt called the meeting to order at 7:16 p.m. 

 

II. Roll Call: 

Roll was called and a quorum was established.  See # 1 on attached sheet. 

 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

IV. Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 

None 

 

V. Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors 

None 

 

VI. Consent Agenda for this meeting 

Secretary's Report – Margaret Carey, Secretary Pro Tem 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, October 18, 2016 

Treasurer’s Report – Charles Reilly, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through October 31, 2016 and Bill 

Reports for October/November 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 

The Board reviewed the regular board minutes, financial statements and bills. 

Grala moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for 

October 18, 2016, the monthly financial statements for the fiscal year through October 31, 2016, 

the Bill Reports for October/November 2016, and payment of the bills.   

Motion passed 6-0.  See # 2 on attached sheet.     

 

VII. Communications 

None 



2 

 

 

VIII. Librarian's Report 

 B. Edminster reported on the progress of Career Online High School and said there are three 

students who are making good progress. 

 J. Scholtz reported that there are new Freedom of Information Act rules that say that asking 

questions about a FOIA request, even to clarify what is asked, constitutes a denial. 

 He also told the Board that Cook County’s minimum wage would be rising to $13.00 per 

hour in 2020.  This does not affect us but will put upward pressure on our wages.  Scholtz 

does not feel that McDonald’s increase in its minimum wage to $9.25 directly affects us 

because we get applications from people who prefer not to work in fast food businesses.  He 

does feel that we will need to revisit our minimum wage paid sometime in the next few 

years. 

 J. Scholtz said that Sue Yazel, the library’s HR Generalist, has participated in this year’s 

LACONI and Illinois Management Association salary surveys.  She also circulated a health 

benefits survey among the library staff to gain information for the health insurance 

discussion. 

 J. Scholtz prepared a survey on the future of librarianship at McHenry Public Library that he 

used to ask Millennial staff about their professional lives and goals.  This is in response to 

differences in how younger staff conducts their work here. 

 Mary Amstadt, Head of Circulation, will be leaving December 9
th

 as a result of her husband 

being transferred by his employer.  Scholtz reported that the library will be advertising right 

away rather than waiting until after the holidays.  We will be looking for someone with 

customer service and supervising skills, whether they have worked at a library before or not.  

The job opening will be posted inside and outside the library. 

 Maintenance staff is redoing the tiles in the main room.  Beaderstadt asked if the flooring 

was still under warranty and Scholtz responded that they had been repaired while under 

warranty but not sufficiently.  A plastic tent has been put up over the worksite to contain 

odors. 

 Maintenance staff is also renovating the Study Rooms by adding soundproofing and new 

furnishings, as well as painting the walls. 

 Scholtz reported on the project to digitize the Plaindealer and other local newspapers as part 

of a local group.  Although the newspapers are digitized and available commercially, the 

effort is to have local control over access as well as providing a single site for local historic 

newspapers. 

 J. Scholtz has met with representatives from MK Solutions, an all-in-one source for RFID 

equipment, supplies, and services.  He had talked with other RFID equipment vendors as 

well.  He has also spoken with local library directors to arrange visits to see their RFID 

installations after the holidays.  The decision might be affected by CCS’s decision about a 

new ILS. 

 Shelving on the west wall of the main room on the Adult side has been removed to allow for 

seating at tables in a relatively quiet part of the library. 

 J. Scholtz reported that the library is purchasing eight more security cameras to fill in spaces 

where coverage is insufficient.  The cameras will also allow for clearer photos. 

 We have arranged for Mental Health First Aid courses from NAMI for staff. The courses 

will take 8 hours, either as a single one-day event or as two 4-hour courses over two days.  

We will host the event and NAMI will identify people outside the library who are interested 

in the course. 
 

 

 



3 

 

IX. Executive Session 

To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of 

specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 

section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the October 18, 2016 executive session minutes. 

  

Carey moved and Stone seconded a motion to go into executive session at 8:28 p.m. to discuss the 

appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific 

employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 

2(c)(1) and review and release of the October 18, 2016 executive session minutes.     

Motion passed 6-0.  See # 8 on attached sheet.      

 

Carey moved and Schubert seconded a motion to come out of executive session at 9:31 p.m.  Motion 

passed 6-0.  See # 9 on attached sheet.      

 

No action was taken. 

 

X. Old Business 

1. RFID Project – Discuss scheduling visits to other area libraries  

2. Board self-evaluation process - Ongoing 

 

XI. New Business 

1. Approval and release of the Oct. 18, 2016 Executive Session Minutes 
The Board reviewed the executive session minutes in Executive Session.   

Carey moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve and release the October 18, 

2016 Executive Session Minutes.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 10 on attached sheet. 

2. Approval of new travel/meetings policy to include PA 99-0604 

The board reviewed the new travel/meetings policy to include PA 99-0604.   

Grala moved and Reilly seconded a motion to approve new travel/meetings policy 

to include PA 99-0604.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 3 on attached sheet. 

3. Approval of Resolution 2016/2017-6  for travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 requirement  

The Board reviewed the Resolution 2016/2017-6 for travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 

requirement.   Carey moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the 

Resolution 2016/2017-6 for travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 requirement.   
Motion passed 6-0.  See # 4 on attached sheet. 

4. Discussion and approval of the new Bereavement Leave policy (incorporates new 

IL Child Bereavement Act of 2016)  

The Board reviewed the Bereavement Leave policy (incorporates new IL Child 

Bereavement Act of 2016).  Reilly moved and Carey seconded a motion to approve 

the Bereavement Leave policy (incorporates new IL Child Bereavement Act of 

2016).  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 5 on attached sheet. 

5. Approval of FY 2015-2016 Annual Audit  

The Board reviewed the FY 2015-2016 Annual Audit.  

Reilly moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the McHenry Public Library 

District Annual Audit Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016.    
Motion passed 6-0.   See # 6 on attached sheet. 

6. Approval of FY 2015-2016 Receipts and Disbursements 

The Board reviewed the FY 2015-2016 Receipts and Disbursements. 

Grala moved and Schubert seconded a motion to approve the Annual Statement of 

Receipts and Disbursements for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2015 and 

ending June 30, 2016 for the McHenry Public Library District.   
Motion passed 6-0.  See # 7 on attached sheet. 

 



4 

 

XII. Any and All Other Business Which May Properly Come Before the Board 

Due to the nearness of the holiday, the next Board Meeting date has been changed from December 

20th to December 13, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

 

XIII. Adjournment 

Reilly moved Schubert seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:38 p.m.   

Motion passed 6-0.   See # 11 on attached sheet. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

       

Margaret Carey, Secretary Pro Tem 

 

 

 

Text for Motion Sheet 

1. Roll Call at 7:16 p.m. 

2. Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for October 18, 2016, the monthly financial statements 

for the fiscal year through October 31, 2016, the Bill Reports for October/November 2016, and payment of 

the bills. 

3. Motion to approve the new travel/meetings policy to include PA 99-0604. 

4. Motion to approve the Resolution 2016/2017-6 for travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 requirement.   

5. Motion to approve the Bereavement Leave policy (incorporates new IL Child Bereavement Act of 2016). 

6. Motion to approve the McHenry Public Library District Annual Audit Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 

2015-2016.    

7. Motion to approve the Annual Statement of Receipts and Disbursements for the Fiscal Year beginning July 

1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016 for the McHenry Public Library District.   

8. Motion to go into executive session at 8:28 p.m. to discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, 

discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release the October 18, 2016 executive session 

minutes.     

9. Motion to come out of executive session at 9:31 p.m.   

10. Motion to approve and release of the October 18, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. 

11. Motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:38 p.m.   
 

 

DATE:  November 15, 2016 

Called to Order: 7:16 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt  

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1. Roll call at 7:16 p.m. P P P  NP P P  P 

2.  Motion to approve the 

minutes of the regular meeting 

for October 18, 2016, the 

monthly financial statements 

for the fiscal year through 

October 31, 2016, the Bill 

Reports for October/November 

2016, and payment of the bills. 

 

Y Y (M)Y NP Y Y (S)Y 



5 

 

 Kathy 

Beaderstadt  

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

3. Motion to approve the new 

travel/meetings policy to 

include PA 99-0604. 
Y Y (M)Y NP (S)Y Y Y 

4. Motion to approve the 

Resolution 2016/2017-6 for 

travel to satisfy PA 99-0604 

requirement.   

Y (M)Y Y NP Y (S)Y Y 

5.  Motion to approve the 

Bereavement Leave policy 

(incorporates new IL Child 

Bereavement Act of 2016). 

Y (S)Y Y NP (M)Y Y Y 

6. Motion to approve the 

McHenry Public Library 

District Annual Audit 

Financial Report for the Fiscal 

Year 2015-2016.    

Y Y Y NP (M)Y  (S)Y Y 

7. Motion to approve the 

Annual Statement of Receipts 

and Disbursements for the 

Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 

2015 and ending June 30, 2016 

for the McHenry Public 

Library District.   

Y Y (M)Y NP Y (S)Y Y 

8. Motion to go into executive 

session at 8:28 p.m. to discuss 

the appointment, employment, 

compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of 

specific employees of the 

public body in compliance 

with the Open Meetings Act 5 

ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and 

review and release of the 

October 18, 2016 executive 

session minutes.     

Y (M)Y Y NP Y Y (S)Y 

9. Motion to come out of 

executive session at 9:31 p.m.   
Y (M)Y Y NP Y (S)Y Y 

10. Motion to approve and 

release the October 18, 2016 

Executive Session Minutes. 
Y (M)Y Y NP Y Y (S)Y 

11. Motion to adjourn the 

meeting at 9:38 p.m.   
Y Y Y NP (M)Y (S)Y Y 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

November 30, 2016



McHenry Public Library District 6:04 PM

Balance Sheet 12/09/2016

As of November 30, 2016 Cash Basis

Nov 30, 16

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market

1060100 · MM - General - First Midwest 1,189,106.91

1060200 · MM - Spec Reserve-First Midwest 1,748,102.87

1060300 · MM - Grant & Gift-First Midwest 461,593.35

Total 1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market 3,398,803.13

1070100 · HSA/Building - First Midwest 364,599.71

1615100 · General Account - First Midwest 21,460.32

1625100 · Payroll Account - First Midwest 117,740.92

1635100 · Imprest Account - First Midwest 4,799.19

1045100 · PROPAY 6,699.88

1150100 · FirstMerit-MoneyMarket- 4/22/11 200,171.55

Total Checking/Savings 4,114,274.70

Other Current Assets

1400100 · Bank Discrepancy Receivable 250.00

1005100 · Petty Cash 800.00

Total Other Current Assets 1,050.00

Total Current Assets 4,115,324.70

TOTAL ASSETS 4,115,324.70

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

3010100 · Fund Balance - General 1,607,104.80

3010200 · Fund Balance - Special Reserve 1,744,332.86

3010300 · Fund Balance - Grants & Gifts 465,934.67

Net Income 297,952.37

Total Equity 4,115,324.70

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,115,324.70

 Page 2 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:06 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 12/09/2016

November 2016 Cash Basis

Nov 16

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 56,118.49

6030100 · Interest Income - General 67.25

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 55.48

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 14.65

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 45.00

6050100 · Fines 4,470.06

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 1,646.46

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 1,915.47

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 1,383.91

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 160.00

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 90.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 422.80

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 271.48

6200100 · Over/Short 7.29

Total Income 66,668.34

Gross Profit 66,668.34

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 6,915.11

8020100 · Youth Books 2,321.33

8025100 · Professional Resources 275.00

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 29.99

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers (590.86)

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 350.00

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 3,548.60

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 996.16

8080100 · Video Games 481.90

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 3,034.09

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 8,989.61

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.81

8120100 · Library Supplies 404.65

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 701.60

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 1,498.64

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 2,966.08

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 152.15

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 1,545.00

8320100 · Network Expenses 20.40

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 4,184.60

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00

8510100 · Printing 145.48

8540100 · Postage 1,854.60

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 716.39

8610100 · Electricity 2,017.34

8620100 · Gas 92.83

8630100 · Telephone 560.37

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 583.30

8740100 · Building & Grounds 3,063.77

8760100 · Hospitality 1,193.66

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 50.98

 Page 3 of 13



Nov 16

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 1,810.69

8910100 · Salaries 133,108.88

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 10,100.68

8930100 · IMRF 14,666.17

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 29,019.47

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 100.00

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 1,238.36

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 4,543.15

Total Expense 242,990.98

Net Income (176,322.64)

 Page 4 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:08 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Class 12/09/2016

July through November 2016 Cash Basis
100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,565,210.51 0.00 0.00 1,565,210.51

6020200 · Developer Fees 0.00 3,470.00 0.00 3,470.00

6030100 · Interest Income - General 289.44 0.00 0.00 289.44

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 0.00 300.01 0.00 300.01

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 0.00 0.00 78.52 78.52

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 0.00 0.00 195.20

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 180.00 0.00 0.00 180.00

6050100 · Fines 18,699.08 0.00 0.00 18,699.08

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 0.00 0.00 110.00

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 6,398.32 0.00 0.00 6,398.32

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 1,966.43 1,966.43

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 6,266.77 0.00 0.00 6,266.77

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,320.00 0.00 0.00 2,320.00

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 265.00 0.00 0.00 265.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 1,345.83 0.00 0.00 1,345.83

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,521.40 0.00 0.00 1,521.40

6200100 · Over/Short 3.29 0.00 0.00 3.29

Total Income 1,602,804.84 3,770.01 2,044.95 1,608,619.80

Gross Profit 1,602,804.84 3,770.01 2,044.95 1,608,619.80

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 41,589.68 0.00 0.00 41,589.68

8020100 · Youth Books 14,460.42 0.00 0.00 14,460.42

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,476.39 0.00 0.00 4,476.39

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 319.96 0.00 0.00 319.96

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 11,666.70 0.00 0.00 11,666.70

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 4,087.28 4,087.28

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 20,557.49 0.00 0.00 20,557.49

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,375.27 0.00 0.00 4,375.27

8080100 · Video Games 3,146.75 0.00 0.00 3,146.75

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 18,731.25 0.00 0.00 18,731.25

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 26,361.29 0.00 0.00 26,361.29

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 1.62 0.00 0.00 1.62

8120100 · Library Supplies 2,014.01 0.00 0.00 2,014.01

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 5,471.24 0.00 0.00 5,471.24

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 9,170.03 0.00 0.00 9,170.03

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 0.00 0.00 1,785.87

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 0.00 0.00 24.08

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 9,312.84 0.00 0.00 9,312.84

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 474.35 0.00 0.00 474.35

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 12,658.74 0.00 0.00 12,658.74

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 0.00 0.00 23,608.00

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,465.52 0.00 0.00 7,465.52

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 0.00 0.00 3,224.00

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 12,594.21 0.00 0.00 12,594.21

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 770.00 0.00 0.00 770.00

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

8510100 · Printing 12,522.24 0.00 0.00 12,522.24

 Page 5 of 13



100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 0.00 0.00 107.30

8540100 · Postage 4,540.83 0.00 0.00 4,540.83

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,882.52 0.00 0.00 3,882.52

8610100 · Electricity 10,280.30 0.00 0.00 10,280.30

8620100 · Gas 347.70 0.00 0.00 347.70

8630100 · Telephone 2,516.07 0.00 0.00 2,516.07

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,678.20 0.00 0.00 2,678.20

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 0.00 0.00 3,204.98

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 0.00 0.00 20,698.00

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 0.00 0.00 5,243.00

8740100 · Building & Grounds 23,933.28 0.00 0.00 23,933.28

8760100 · Hospitality 1,792.06 0.00 0.00 1,792.06

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 94.76 0.00 0.00 94.76

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 0.00 0.00 2,298.99 2,298.99

8910100 · Salaries 711,907.57 0.00 0.00 711,907.57

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 53,678.61 0.00 0.00 53,678.61

8930100 · IMRF 78,221.04 0.00 0.00 78,221.04

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 124,635.10 0.00 0.00 124,635.10

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 0.00 0.00 618.84

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 1,089.96 0.00 0.00 1,089.96

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 3,589.73 0.00 0.00 3,589.73

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 0.00 0.00 1,333.24

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 2,506.12 0.00 0.00 2,506.12

Total Expense 1,304,281.16 0.00 6,386.27 1,310,667.43

Net Income 298,523.68 3,770.01 (4,341.32) 297,952.37

 Page 6 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:10 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/09/2016

July through November 2016 Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,565,210.51 3,180,652.28 (1,615,441.77) 49.21%

6020200 · Developer Fees 3,470.00 25,000.00 (21,530.00) 13.88%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 289.44 5,000.00 (4,710.56) 5.79%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 300.01 3,000.00 (2,699.99) 10.0%

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 78.52 2,500.00 (2,421.48) 3.14%

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 500.00 (304.80) 39.04%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 180.00 1,000.00 (820.00) 18.0%

6050100 · Fines 18,699.08 55,000.00 (36,300.92) 34.0%

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 1,000.00 (890.00) 11.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 6,398.32 17,000.00 (10,601.68) 37.64%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 1,966.43 20,000.00 (18,033.57) 9.83%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 6,266.77 17,000.00 (10,733.23) 36.86%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,320.00 4,200.00 (1,880.00) 55.24%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 265.00 1,000.00 (735.00) 26.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 1,345.83 25,000.00 (23,654.17) 5.38%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,521.40 6,000.00 (4,478.60) 25.36%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6200100 · Over/Short 3.29 0.00 3.29 100.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 1,608,619.80 4,326,745.71 (2,718,125.91) 37.18%

Gross Profit 1,608,619.80 4,326,745.71 (2,718,125.91) 37.18%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 41,589.68 85,000.00 (43,410.32) 48.93%

8020100 · Youth Books 14,460.42 59,000.00 (44,539.58) 24.51%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,476.39 3,500.00 976.39 127.9%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 319.96 6,400.00 (6,080.04) 5.0%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 11,666.70 15,000.00 (3,333.30) 77.78%

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 4,087.28 448,381.10 (444,293.82) 0.91%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 20,557.49 62,000.00 (41,442.51) 33.16%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,375.27 16,000.00 (11,624.73) 27.35%

8080100 · Video Games 3,146.75 15,000.00 (11,853.25) 20.98%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 18,731.25 55,500.00 (36,768.75) 33.75%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 26,361.29 80,000.00 (53,638.71) 32.95%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 1.62 500.00 (498.38) 0.32%

8120100 · Library Supplies 2,014.01 10,000.00 (7,985.99) 20.14%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 5,471.24 57,200.00 (51,728.76) 9.57%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 9,170.03 22,000.00 (12,829.97) 41.68%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 12,000.00 (10,214.13) 14.88%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 9,312.84 21,500.00 (12,187.16) 43.32%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 474.35 1,500.00 (1,025.65) 31.62%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 12,658.74 59,000.00 (46,341.26) 21.46%

 Page 7 of 13



Jul - Nov 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 80,000.00 (56,392.00) 29.51%

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,465.52 25,000.00 (17,534.48) 29.86%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 8,000.00 (4,776.00) 40.3%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 12,594.21 28,000.00 (15,405.79) 44.98%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 770.00 14,000.00 (13,230.00) 5.5%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 12,522.24 36,000.00 (23,477.76) 34.78%

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 4,540.83 18,000.00 (13,459.17) 25.23%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,882.52 10,000.00 (6,117.48) 38.83%

8610100 · Electricity 10,280.30 25,000.00 (14,719.70) 41.12%

8620100 · Gas 347.70 2,500.00 (2,152.30) 13.91%

8630100 · Telephone 2,516.07 13,500.00 (10,983.93) 18.64%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,678.20 7,000.00 (4,321.80) 38.26%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 3,500.00 (295.02) 91.57%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 32,000.00 (11,302.00) 64.68%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 5,500.00 (257.00) 95.33%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 23,933.28 54,000.00 (30,066.72) 44.32%

8760100 · Hospitality 1,792.06 13,000.00 (11,207.94) 13.79%

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 94.76 700.00 (605.24) 13.54%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 2,298.99 0.00 2,298.99 100.0%

8910100 · Salaries 711,907.57 1,810,000.00 (1,098,092.43) 39.33%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 53,678.61 145,000.00 (91,321.39) 37.02%

8930100 · IMRF 78,221.04 180,000.00 (101,778.96) 43.46%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 124,635.10 260,000.00 (135,364.90) 47.94%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 9,000.00 (8,381.16) 6.88%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 1,089.96 8,000.00 (6,910.04) 13.63%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 3,589.73 14,000.00 (10,410.27) 25.64%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 35,000.00 (33,666.76) 3.81%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 2,506.12 320,000.00 (317,493.88) 0.78%

Total Expense 1,310,667.43 4,492,724.53 (3,182,057.10) 29.17%

Net Income 297,952.37 (165,978.82) 463,931.19 (179.51%)

 Page 8 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:12 PM

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/09/2016

July 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016 - General Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 1,565,210.51 3,180,652.28 (1,615,441.77) 49.21%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 289.44 5,000.00 (4,710.56) 5.79%

6035100 · Dividends 195.20 500.00 (304.80) 39.04%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 180.00 1,000.00 (820.00) 18.0%

6050100 · Fines 18,699.08 55,000.00 (36,300.92) 34.0%

6055100 · Collection Fees 110.00 1,000.00 (890.00) 11.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 6,398.32 17,000.00 (10,601.68) 37.64%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 6,266.77 17,000.00 (10,733.23) 36.86%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 2,320.00 4,200.00 (1,880.00) 55.24%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 265.00 1,000.00 (735.00) 26.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 1,345.83 25,000.00 (23,654.17) 5.38%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 1,521.40 6,000.00 (4,478.60) 25.36%

6200100 · Over/Short 3.29 0.00 3.29 100.0%

Total Income 1,602,804.84 3,314,352.28 (1,711,547.44) 48.36%

Gross Profit 1,602,804.84 3,314,352.28 (1,711,547.44) 48.36%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 41,589.68 85,000.00 (43,410.32) 48.93%

8020100 · Youth Books 14,460.42 59,000.00 (44,539.58) 24.51%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,476.39 3,500.00 976.39 127.9%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 319.96 6,400.00 (6,080.04) 5.0%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 11,666.70 15,000.00 (3,333.30) 77.78%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 20,557.49 62,000.00 (41,442.51) 33.16%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 4,375.27 16,000.00 (11,624.73) 27.35%

8080100 · Video Games 3,146.75 15,000.00 (11,853.25) 20.98%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 18,731.25 55,500.00 (36,768.75) 33.75%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 26,361.29 80,000.00 (53,638.71) 32.95%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 1.62 500.00 (498.38) 0.32%

8120100 · Library Supplies 2,014.01 10,000.00 (7,985.99) 20.14%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 5,471.24 57,200.00 (51,728.76) 9.57%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 9,170.03 22,000.00 (12,829.97) 41.68%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 1,785.87 12,000.00 (10,214.13) 14.88%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 9,312.84 21,500.00 (12,187.16) 43.32%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 474.35 1,500.00 (1,025.65) 31.62%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 12,658.74 59,000.00 (46,341.26) 21.46%

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 23,608.00 80,000.00 (56,392.00) 29.51%

8320100 · Network Expenses 7,465.52 25,000.00 (17,534.48) 29.86%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 3,224.00 8,000.00 (4,776.00) 40.3%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 12,594.21 28,000.00 (15,405.79) 44.98%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 770.00 14,000.00 (13,230.00) 5.5%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 12,522.24 36,000.00 (23,477.76) 34.78%

 Page 9 of 13



Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 4,540.83 18,000.00 (13,459.17) 25.23%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 3,882.52 10,000.00 (6,117.48) 38.83%

8610100 · Electricity 10,280.30 25,000.00 (14,719.70) 41.12%

8620100 · Gas 347.70 2,500.00 (2,152.30) 13.91%

8630100 · Telephone 2,516.07 13,500.00 (10,983.93) 18.64%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 2,678.20 7,000.00 (4,321.80) 38.26%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 3,204.98 3,500.00 (295.02) 91.57%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 20,698.00 32,000.00 (11,302.00) 64.68%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 5,243.00 5,500.00 (257.00) 95.33%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 23,933.28 54,000.00 (30,066.72) 44.32%

8760100 · Hospitality 1,792.06 13,000.00 (11,207.94) 13.79%

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 94.76 700.00 (605.24) 13.54%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8910100 · Salaries 711,907.57 1,810,000.00 (1,098,092.43) 39.33%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 53,678.61 145,000.00 (91,321.39) 37.02%

8930100 · IMRF 78,221.04 180,000.00 (101,778.96) 43.46%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 124,635.10 260,000.00 (135,364.90) 47.94%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 618.84 9,000.00 (8,381.16) 6.88%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 1,089.96 8,000.00 (6,910.04) 13.63%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 3,589.73 14,000.00 (10,410.27) 25.64%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 1,333.24 35,000.00 (33,666.76) 3.81%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects 2,506.12 320,000.00 (317,493.88) 0.78%

Total Expense 1,304,281.16 3,836,950.00 (2,532,668.84) 33.99%

Net Income 298,523.68 (522,597.72) 821,121.40 (57.12%)

 Page 10 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:14 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/09/2016

July 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016 -Special Reserve Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Oct 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6020200 · Developer Fees 3,470.00 25,000.00 (21,530.00) 13.88%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 300.01 3,000.00 (2,699.99) 10.0%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 3,770.01 855,000.00 (851,229.99) 0.44%

Gross Profit 3,770.01 855,000.00 (851,229.99) 0.44%

Expense

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Net Income 3,770.01 705,000.00 (701,229.99) 0.54%

 Page 11 of 13



McHenry Public Library District 6:17 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 12/09/2016

July 1, 2016 - November 30, 2016 - Grant and Gift Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Nov 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 78.52 2,500.00 (2,421.48) 3.14%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 1,966.43 20,000.00 (18,033.57) 9.83%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 2,044.95 157,393.43 (155,348.48) 1.3%

Gross Profit 2,044.95 157,393.43 (155,348.48) 1.3%

Expense

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 4,087.28 448,381.10 (444,293.82) 0.91%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 2,298.99 0.00 2,298.99 100.0%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 6,386.27 505,774.53 (499,388.26) 1.26%

Net Income (4,341.32) (348,381.10) 344,039.78 1.25%

 Page 12 of 13



McHenry Public Library District

INTERIM CHECKS ISSUED - November 2016

(NOT INCLUDED ON BILL REPORT)

Account - Money Market    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

(no checks written on this account)

subtotal for account -$               

Account - General Fund

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

Comcast T-1 and other Telecommunications 247.80$         8635-100 11/09/16 EFT

subtotal for account 247.80$         

Account - HSA/Building 

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 11/09/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 11/09/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 11/23/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 11/23/16 EFT

subtotal for account 2,680.36$      

Account  - Payroll    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

IL Municipal Retirement Fund IMRF 21,465.60$    8930-100 11/01/16 EFT

subtotal for account 21,465.60$    

Account - Imprest    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION   AMOUNT  ACCT# DATE CHECK

 subtotal for account -$                  

 

GRAND TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED 24,393.76$    



 

 

1 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

November 2016 

 

 

 

Administration 

 Scholtz working on digitization project for Richmond Gazette – could mean funding for digitization of 

PlainDealer (already available on NewsBank/Newspapers.com),committed as much as $6K to 

project 

 NAMI will provide mental health education to select staff in 2017 – library could be a potential 

training site. 

 RFID tours at other libraries will be scheduled for board and staff (Jan – Feb 2017).  Round Lake PL 

meeting at MPLD on 2/22 with facilities tour to follow (J. Scholtz doing tour) 

 J. Scholtz took care of various problems over holiday – Enterprise viewing problem, YS laptop issue, 

Evanced booking problem. 

 Holiday materials drop maintenance calendar for holidays confirmed.  Thanks to Circ, Admin for 

coming in holiday hours to empty drop/check-in materials. 

 B. Edminster led the Classic Book Discussion of The Great Gatsby by F. Scott Fitzgerald, 11/21. 

 Sunrise Rotary group distributed holiday garlands from library pole barn (week of 11/26). 

 Last day of work for M. Amstadt (12/9); last full day of work for A. Nicholls 12/22 

 B. Edminster represented the library at the Character Counts! Coalition meeting of 12/8. 

 B. Edminster showed up as Santa at the staff in-service of 12/9, the Spanish language holiday 

program of 12/12, and the English language holiday program of 12/14. 

 3 board members running for re-election in Apr. 2017 – K. Beaderstadt; D. Grala and J. Stone. All 

docs due at MPLD (circ. Desk) by 12/16. 

 

Adult 

 A teenager came to the desk in a panic.  He couldn’t find his wallet and wanted to know would we 

help him find his wallet. I retraced his steps back to the Self-Checkout Counter and with the help of 

Laurie Rex, I lifted the machine up and Laurie found the wallet underneath the machine along with a 

Hannah Montana (sic) music cd and a Chicago Parent magazine. T. O’Toole  

 T. Hillier with the help of Z. Terrill got the Plaindealer Death Indexes on the Genealogy site & VITA 

 T. Hillier worked with our intern, Ann, on photo/negative project for the genealogy library. 

 Patrons really like the study area that we created next to the large meeting rooms. Patrons can 

spread out their materials and it is very quiet in that area. 

 The department with the help of IT and maintenance created a more open computer area with aisle 

ways and more space between the public service desk and the computers. Thanks to all for your 

help! 

 The department would like to say thank you and good luck to Mary Amstadt for everything she has 

done for us and the library since she has worked here. We will miss you so much but wish you well 

in North Carolina. 

 

 

 



 

 

2 

 

Building Services 

 Assisted R. Jensen in installing 8 security cameras in library for improved security. 

 First snow of the season – 12/4.  D. Harding and maintenance crew did a spectacular job – thanks!! 

 Maintenance crew working on completing red square floor work – finished with Adult area, moving to 

YS; chair mats ordered/installed in computer areas.  

 Study rooms received sound proofing material above the ceiling. 

 

Circulation 

 S. Willis reported 153 expired holds were pulled in November. 

 M. Amstadt announced her retirement date. 

 A. Nicholls announced her retirement date. 

 L. Rex and S. Willis attended a Customer Service Tips and Tricks seminar at the 95th Street Branch 

of the Naperville Public Library. 

 

Human Resources 

 No changes in staffing (FTE) for the month. 

 Mary Amstadt, Circulation Manager, officially resigned due to relocation (spouse’s job move to North 

Carolina). 

 Actively began soliciting internal and external applicants for Circulation Department Manager 

position. 

 Salary Increase Information:  Data is pulled from a minimum of 3 months (vs. monthly) to maintain 

confidentiality and also provide meaningful numbers. 

o Average Salary increase for the Last 3 months – 3.14% 

 This average calculation is missing data from three employees whose salary 

increases have not yet been submitted. 

o Average Salary increase for the Last Calendar Quarter – 2.5% 

o Average Salary increase for the FY 2016-2017 (year-to-date) – 2.69% 

 This average calculation is missing data from three employees whose salary 

increases have not yet been submitted. 

 Fiscal YTD:  two employees did not receive an increase due to performance and two 

employees have received lump-sum merit payments vs. an increase to their base 

salary 

 Continued to monitor and evaluate on-going employee relations issue of high complexity 

 Worked with broker on benefit renewal process.  Assisted Jim in his final decision for the benefit 

selection for the new benefit year. 

 Insignificant changes in benefit levels/vendors; however, shifted cost-sharing to 5% for employee-

only coverage. 

 Off-set increase in medical cost-sharing to provide free dental and vision benefits to all eligible 

employees (advantageous due to higher admin cost vs. payroll deductions gained). 

 Conducted Open Enrollment meetings on 11/16 & 11/17.  Three (3) employees switched from HRA 

medial plan to the HSA plan. 

 Worked with Admin staff to automate HSA employer contributions and reduced 26 deposits to 12 

(reduced admin workload and provided greater benefit to employees):  contribution remains as 

$1,200/participant. 



 

 

3 

 Participated in HR Roundtable (sponsored by Management Association) at the Palatine Public 

Library 

 Attended monthly Managers’ Meeting 

 

 Attending In-Service Committee Meeting 

 Participated in webinars on the following topics: 

o Trends in Performance Management & Compensation 

o Employee Engagement 

o Cultivating Relationships 

o Marijuana in the Workplace 

 

Public Relations  

 Laid out the January/February Preface library newsletter, which will be dropped off at post offices for 

delivery on or around December 9-10. Program registration begins Dec. 12. 

 Started to prepare Winter Reading Program materials. This year’s theme is “Red Carpet Reads.” 

 Wrote and sent a patron e-newsletter on December 1 featuring holiday/December programs and 

holiday closings. 

 Promoted Friends’ kids’ Christmas book sale, which took place Nov. 21-27. 

 Library awareness email campaign began Nov. 3, with weekly blasts distributed to patrons through 

the holidays. This is a joint venture between CCS and Library Aware, and costs nothing to us to 

participate in. 

 Participated in a webinar for instructions on the upcoming library cardholder email campaign, which 

will begin in January with regular emails to new and existing cardholders. LibraryAware is 

sponsoring this campaign, free for libraries who subscribe to LibraryAware. 

 Promoted library programs through a variety of media, including Social Media and electronic signage 

inside and out. 

 Updated website. 

 Attended RAILS marketing group meeting at Gail Borden PL on Nov. 18. Heard about successful 

and non-successful referenda campaigns. 

 Attended Management Team meeting and meeting on benefits enrollment. 

 The library participated in the Chamber’s Harvest Food Drive for F.I.S.H. Food Pantry, collecting 

food and personal items. 

 

Technical Services   

 Department meetings, K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin, K. Meadows, P. Radic, K. Walker, K. Milfajt, 11/1/16, 
11/15/16. 

 CCS Catalog and Metadata Management RDA workshop, K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin, K. Milfajt, 
11/16/2016. 

 Insurance benefits meetings, K. Kimbrel, D. Lavin, K. Meadows, K. Walker, K. Milfajt, 11/16/2016, 
11/17/2016 

 Book covering at the YS NaNoWriMo workshop, K. Walker, K. Milfajt, 11/28/2016 

 Collection Development meeting, K. Milfajt, 11/1/2016. 

 Management Team meeting, K. Milfajt, 11/8/2016. 

 SCRAP, K. Milfajt, 11/9/2016. 

 Project Laulima RFP Scoring Rubric session, K. Milfajt, 11/10/2016. 

 CCS Circulation, K. Milfajt, 11/11/2016 – presented for the CCS Catalog and Metadata Management 
technical group. 

 Moderated the Contemporary Book Group, K. Milfajt, 11/14/2016. 



 

 

4 

 K. Kimbrel continues to handle the invoices and request replacement discs from our audiobook 
vendors. 

 K. Meadows reorganized our supply of browser labels for easier and more efficient access to the 
inventory. 

 K. Milfajt participated in the scoring of the ILS vendor responses to the RFP. 

 

 

 

 

 

Technology 

 This month MPLit closed 82 Helpdesk tickets; Sent in our Eco Master Disk cleaner for repair; 

replaced a few Circulation receipt printers; Moved adult workstations a few times in November due 

to the floor repair; Updated our Chromebooks for staff use; Several staff  webinars were setup in the 

boardroom & Conference room 124 and Updated Web pages as needed plus Assisting patrons & 

staff as needed.   

Youth Services 

 Spanish Interactions: 97 adults, 19 teens, 178 children 

 Snacks: 70 snacks served, 97 patrons through room 
 Teacher Checkout Program: We received a total of 11 requests for classroom materials. A total of 

120 books, 1 audiobook (cd), 1 music cd (Spanish), and 12 DVDs were pulled by YS staff and 
checked out to teachers for classroom use. 

 J. Velasquez spent the month preparing a presenting the Juntos program. This 5-week workshop 
was done in conjunction with the 4-H Metro Education Department and focuses on middle school 
students from immigrant Spanish speaking families. The goal of the program is to help these 
students understand how middle performance affects their high school school and future college 
career and to understand the ins-and-outs of the school system. We were picked as one of three 
libraries in the state to partner with 4-H in this test program. While the attendance was lower than 
expected Jennifer was able to create great community partners with the District 156’s bilingual 
services staff, Mano a Mano, and 4-H. We also had a great volunteer and co-presenter, Luis Ocotl, 
who is a library patron, recent graduate of McHenry HS and a first generation college student at 
MCC share his story of navigating high school.  

 G. Doolan had nine local preschool centers set-up booths for the library’s annual preschool fair at 
the beginning of November. We had ten families come to the fair where they each were provided 
with a library tote bag filled with information about early literacy and how choose the right preschool 
for your child.  

 M. Dineen attended LACONI’s Literacy and Our Littlest Patrons workshop. There was a presentation 
on Digital Media & the Very Young, Reach Out and Read, and 1000 Books Before Kindergarten. 
The Digital Media presenter went over the newly released recommendations for screen time for 
young children by the American Academy of Pediatricians . She also offered some great resources 
and personal recommendations for early literacy apps. After the 1000 BB4K presentation, we broke 
up into smaller groups and libraries shared how they have implemented the program. This was 
especially helpful since we are rolling out a 1000 Books before Kindergarten in January  2017. 

 C. Bergan was the featured presenter at Valley View’s all-staff meeting in November. She was able 
to share the library’s services, programs and collections to 43 staff members and received many 
compliments about her presentation “I am a 5th grade special ed teacher at Valley View, and we had 
you come to our SDW a few weeks ago. We were quite impressed with your presentation :)” and 
“My name is Carey Noonan and I teach 4th grade at Valley View.  You did a great job presenting the 
other morning!”. Not only did the staff enjoy Caitlin’s presentation, but since then we have booked 
library tours with four different grade levels and have seen an increase in their staff using the  
Teacher Checkout Program.  



 

 

5 

  R. Raleigh attended YALSA’s Literature Symposium in Pittsburgh this month. The ALA weekend 
conference focuses on all things young adult. Some of the presentations Rebekah attended were: 
Power of “ProTeen”  and Building Their Own World: Teen-Driven Community Engagement 
focusing on how to collaborate with teens and get them involved in the library which will be a great 
resource while working with her TAG group. Also, presentation on teen homelessness, maker 
spaces and debut authors. 
 
 
 
 

 M. Cairo helped a mom looking for books to encourage paragraph writing. As Mariann began to look 
up the usual resources for her, she continued to inform me that her son is in fourth grade with a form 
of autism and a reluctant reader! I realized our nonfiction resources would be given a ‘big thumbs 
down’, so I then went a different route and suggested the Scooby Doo You Choose series. My 
reasoning was the boy and his mom could read the story together and he could “choose” the ending 
and write it in the form of a paragraph. A few weeks later the mom came to the desk to tell me how 
excited she was when he son eagerly looked for a pencil to write the paragraph of his choice! 
Scooby to the rescue! 

 J. Drinka presented a 4-week NaNoWriMo workshop for young readers. NaNoWriMo is a intitative to 
write a novel in the month of November or for younger kids to make it a point to do creative writing 
every day. By the end of the workshop Joe got them all writing, consistency. One even way 
surpassed her word count goal. They loved writing on our typewriters, by the way. Last meeting 
time, they got their journal books covered 

 
Statistics and Highlights Narrative 

Legend – ABk – Adult Books; JBk – Children’s Books; PBk – Paperback Books; AudBk – Audio books; JAudBk – 

Children’s Audio books; ILL – Interlibrary loan; Vid/DVD – Videos/DVDs; JVid/DVD – Children’s Videos/DVDs; Oth – 

Other  End of the calendar year (Jan – Dec. stats will be highlighted in the Jan. 2017 report. 

Upcoming Events and Projects 
 Set-up staff/board visits to area libraries and RFID libraries (Jan./Feb 2017) 

 Lift station project (discovery) – what to do next? 

 Exploration of various community projects (supply garden/Chautauqua, etc.) – talk with City and 
Landmark Commission 

 Continue with Docuware scanning of documents 

 Upgrade of solar panels/install new (April 2017) 

 Jan – Apr. 2017 – tax help uses the Storytime Rm. 

 New furniture ordered for study rooms (thanks to YS/Ad. Dept. suggestions) 

 Feb 2017 – new ILS to be chosen by CCS libraries – implementation to follow 

 Staff who want to be voter registrars receive training/oath of officeHiring of new Circ. Dept. Hd. 
(Jan/Feb. 2017) 

    

 
   

 
   

 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES  

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

 

Date: November 15, 2016  

Time: 8:28 p.m. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

 

Members Present: Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Charles Reilly, Bradley Schubert, 

and Jill Stone 

  

Members Absent: Monica Leccese 

 

 

During Executive Session, the Board discussed the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the October 18, 2016 executive 

session minutes.  

 

No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Margaret Carey, Secretary Pro Tem  

 

 

 
Text for Motion Sheet 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

 

DATE:  November 15, 2016 

Called to Order: 8:28 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt 

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1.  Roll call P P P NP P P P 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report
Per Capita Grant funds must be obligated by June 30 and expended by August 15.

Library Name: __________________________________    City: __________________________________________

Control Number: __________________________    Branch Number: ______________________________________

Fiscal Year:  _______________   Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received:  ______________________________

CHECK EXPENDITURE CATEGORY.  EACH CHECKED CATEGORY MUST INCLUDE A BRIEF EXPLANATION.

 Materials (materials for all ages, genres and formats, including electronic resources, books on tape,DVD’s, CD’s, etc.)

            

      Programs (Summer Reading, Mom & Tot, educational, instructional, etc.)

      Personnel

      Electronic Access (databases, resource sharing, LLSAPs, system fees, etc.)

      Continuing Education (staff and/or board)

      Supplies

      

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid                                                                                                                                      Deadline – On or before January 15 

JESSE WHITE • Secretary of State & State Librarian
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796

Printed by authority of the State of Illinois. September 2016 – 1 – LD A 274.1



Equipment (office equipment, computer software and hardware, etc.)

      Travel

      Public Relations (newsletters, media ads, etc.)

      Telecommunications (phone, fax, internet, cable, etc.)

      Construction – Be specific (ADA Accessibility, new carpeting and floor coverings, new furnishings, attached shelving, lighting, basic re-
               modeling, energy conservation, electrical, roofing, elevators, ceilings, HVAC, plumbing, doors/windows, fire protection, book drops, circulation 
               desks, security systems, technology wiring, and interior or exterior painting)

      Contractual Services – Be specific (legal fees, architect fees, consulting fees, etc.) 

      

      Other – Be specific (insurance, utilities, furniture, Shelving, association fees, lawn maintenance, etc.) 

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid                                                                                                                                      Deadline – On or before January 15 



Illinois State Library
ILLINOIS PUBLIC LIBRARY PER CAPITA AND 
EQUALIZATION AID GRANTS APPLICATION

If the library does not have a current Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) on file with the Illinois State
Library, the application will not be reviewed or considered for funding.  

Enter initials to confirm authorization to submit this application, and that you have read and understand the
Program Overview and Administrative Rules for this grant offering from the Illinois State Library. If initials have
not been entered (typed) on this line, the application will not be reviewed or considered for funding by the State
Library.  
_______________    _______________

Initials Date

Pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS), 75 ILCS 10/8 and 10/8.1, as amended, the
undersigned PUBLIC LIBRARY hereby applies for Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid
Grants to be used for library purposes.

1.   Legal Name of Library: __________________________________________________________________
     
2.   Library’s Control Number: _______________________  Branch Number: __________________________

3.   Contact Information of Person completing this grant application:

     Preparer’s Name: ______________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                                
     Preparer’s Title: _______________________________________________________________________

     Preparer’s Phone Number: _______________________________________________________________

     Preparer’s Email Address: _______________________________________________________________  
     
4.   Population Served: __________________
     
     All changes in population must be documented, and that documentation must be attached as a separate 
     document(s) and electronically submitted along with this application. Documentation should include one of
     the following:
     • Any U.S. Census documentation (corrections, special census, etc.) that has been filed with the Office of
     Secretary of State Index Department prior to submission of the application. 
     • For population changes, annexations or disconnects that are typically not documented by the U.S. 
     Census, the library must include appropriate and substantial documentation. Examples include, but are
     not limited to: documentation from appropriate municipal corporate authorities, a library district’s board 
     of trustees, referenda questions and certified results, etc.
     Contact the Illinois State Library with any questions about what documentation should be included.

Printed by authority of the State of Illinois. September 2016 – 1 – LD A 179.6

JESSE WHITE • Secretary of State & State Librarian
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building
300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796

(Prefix)                 (First Name)                                         (Last Name) 



5.   Standards Chapter Review: As per the requirements, the library administration and board of trustees 
     must review Chapter 6, “Access,” of Serving Our Public 3.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries, 
     2014. (75ILCS 10/8.1,1). Provide a short narrative describing the library’s progress toward meeting the 
     standards, including any changes that were made as a result of the review.

6.  Trustees: Describe how the library meets the needs of the community as a provider of educational programs
     and training opportunities. Include a description of how the library can integrate new technologies and 
     include one activity that fosters increased resource sharing.

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid - Deadline – On or Before January 15 Page 2



7.  Technology: Having completed the EDGE Assessment, describe the impact that the EDGE Assessment 
     has had on the library, and include at least one example of how the library has used, or plans to use the 
     information gleaned from the assessment.

8.   Education and Training: Describe current or potential collaborative efforts that have benefited, or will 
     benefit local library patrons and patrons in neighboring communities. 

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid - Deadline – On or Before January 15 Page 3



9.   Outreach: Provide a brief description of the library’s current or planned involvement with services available
     through the Illinois State Library Talking Book and Braille Service (TBBS). For more information about the 
     services offered by TBBS, please visit http://www.ilbph.org/ 

     

10. Planned Use of Funds: Describe how the library plans to use grant monies in order to meet standards in
     the most recent edition of Serving Our Public 3.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries. Use general categories 
      in identifying actual planned expenditures. 

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid - Deadline – On or Before January 15 Page 4






















	topmostSubform[0]: 
	Page1[0]: 
	Lib_name[0]: McHenry Public Library District
	Lib_city[0]: McHenry
	Ctrl_nbr[0]: 30448
	Branch_nbr[0]: 00
	Fiscal_yr[0]: 2015
	Per_cap_amnt_rcvd[0]: $52,528.75
	Print[0]: 
	Save[0]: 
	EmailSubmitButton1[0]: 
	Mtrls[0]: 1
	Mtrls_explain[0]: Half of the Per Capita money was used for materials and was divided evenly between the Adult and Youth collections. The money was spent on fiction and nonfiction in print, including large print, audiobooks and music CDs, and movies and television series on DVDs.
	Programs[0]: Off
	Programs_explain[0]: 
	Prsnl[0]: Off
	Prsnl_explain[0]: 
	E_access[0]: Off
	E_access_explain[0]: 
	CE[0]: Off
	CE_explain[0]: 
	Supplies[0]: Off
	Supplies_explain[0]: 
	Auth_init[0]: RWE
	Auth_init_date[0]: 12/13/2016
	Legal_name_lib[0]: McHenry Public Library District
	Prep_pre[0]: Mr.
	Prep_title[0]: Assistant Director
	Prep_phone[0]: 815 385-0036
	Prep_email[0]: bedminster@mchenrylibrary.org
	Pop_serv[0]: 42,023
	Prep_first_name[0]: Reuben William
	Prep_last_name[0]: Edminster

	Page2[0]: 
	Equip[0]: Off
	Equip_explain[0]: Half of the Per Capita money was spent on servers, monitors, keyboards, wireless networking hardware and software, promotional flashdrives for promotions, and service and support for hardware.
	Travel[0]: Off
	Travel_explain[0]: 
	Public_rel[0]: Off
	Public_rel_explain[0]: 
	Telecom[0]: Off
	Telecom_explain[0]: 
	Construct[0]: Off
	Construct_explain[0]: 
	Contrc_srvcs[0]: Off
	Contrc_srvcs_explain[0]: 
	Other[0]: Off
	Other_explain[0]: 
	Q5_stnd_rev[0]:   McHenry Public Library meets the Access Standards for Access and the Access Checklist although we recognize that there are always ways to exceed standards.  We recently improved and expanded our signage within the library, adding hanging and wall signs with larger fonts in locations high enough to be seen as soon as you enter our the entrance Main Room, which has 18 foot ceilings.  Our endcaps and the signs are color-coded for the reading level of their areas.  We include Spanish translations for the most important directional signs.  We also have wall and hanging signs for our Spanish and Polish language collections.  As of the beginning of 2016, we use the StackMaps program to provide maps within our public catalogs, so that patrons can see a map directing them to where an on-shelf item should be located.  We will also add corresponding stack numbers to endcap signs once a significant shifting project is completed.  In order to better provide access for patrons with disabilities, we have added two magnifying machines for print materials that can be checked out of the library.  We also provide workstations with large type keyboards and have loaded Microsoft enhanced features on all workstations.  The Youth Department hosts monthly visits to use the library by special needs adults from McHenry’s Pioneer Center. It also gives tours regularly to special needs school children.
	Q6_trustees[0]:  We recently signed up for Career Online High School through RAILS, which offers a fully-accredited high school degree online.  As of December 7, 2016, we have three candidates who have passed the prerequisites for scholarships and are well on their way to getting a high school degree through our library.  Based on census figures, we have over 2,000 residents over the age of 21 who do not have high school degrees and by offering Career Online High School we are providing an educational program that provides distance learning at a high school level.  We began with five scholarships but have purchased five from our current fiscal year budget due to interest expressed by the public. This is an example of how we integrate distance learning technology with our local patrons at a level it hasn’t been before. We also offer distance learning on various topics through Learning Express and on language learning through Mango.  We offer an in-library class on how to create resumes by showing patrons how to use Learning Express. We offer computer classes to the public in the library in addition to the online courses offered.  Staff teach classes on using ereaders at assisted living and senior services facilities. In recent years, the library has added Hoopla for offering streaming movies and television shows, audiobooks, music, ebooks, and comics.  This expands our commitment to using technology to share resources with our patrons, which is continues our long-term commitment to offering resources to our patrons using new technologies through Overdrive by way of the North Suburban Digital Consortium and of emagazines through Zinio. We provided a learning experience to employees of Follett Library Resources located in McHenry by providing a tour for 20 employees showing the all aspects of library operations including experiencing an adult coloring program.

	Page3[0]: 
	Q7_tech[0]:   Insights from our Edge Assessment helped us identify ways to better serve our patrons.  For example, Benchmark 1.2 lead us to identify the importance of having Spanish language staff give on-on-one help with digital literacy and we now provide it at scheduled times.  As a result of Benchmark 8.2, we include technical competencies and responsibilities in job descriptions and incorporate them into annual evaluations and annual staff goals.  In order to meet Benchmark 9.2, we have markedly increased our Wi-Fi bandwidth capacity to support public user demand.  Benchmark 11.1 inspired us to acquire assistive technology for public computers.  We have also incorporated regular training at staff in-services for recognizing and serving patrons with disabilities.  Although it does not fall under a specific Benchmark, we were inspired to reorganize our IT Department to insure that IT staff are here to assist patrons and staff serving patrons during more hours that we are open.
	Q8_ed_train[0]:   McHenry Public Library is a member of the CCS library consortium sharing a catalog and patron database.  Patrons can easily use other libraries as reciprocal borrowers and can initiate interlibrary loans from the library’s catalog.  CCS also provides staff training opportunities, for example on RDA cataloging, and professional networking opportunities through its technical groups.  We are also a member of the North Suburban Digital Consortium, which shares a downloadable collection through Overdrive.  McHenry Public Library District serves the eastern half of Wonder Lake and before the 2008 recession began, we discussed building a library branch as part of a new K-8 school in the Harrison School District #36 that a developer was proposing to build as part of the Thatcher Woods subdivision.  The subdivision was put on hold due to the recession but is being revived so the discussion with the school is also being resumed.  The development as envisioned in 2008 would add 3,700 homes to the district in addition to commercial properties.  We want to be part of the discussion while it is still possible to affect the outcome and make sure we can optimally serve the new residents.  McHenry Public Library is involved in many cooperative groups that inform us about opportunities to serve the community and that we can support by providing information for community groups.  Examples include the City of McHenry Ad Hoc Committee of governmental units that serve the city, the McHenry County Librarians networking group that began as a way to share information between NILS and NSLS libraries in the county, various RAILS networking groups, and the McHenry Area Character Count! Coalition that supports character education in the schools and in the community.  The Youth Department has received money from the Friends of the McHenry Library to create Books for Baby Bags that are distributed to parents of newborns that develop pre-literacy skills in babies.  The Friends made a donation recently for a 1,000 Books Before Pre-School program that will begin in 2017, which is aimed at toddlers.

	Page4[0]: 
	Q9_outreach[0]:   Our outreach librarian handles all requests for special needs patrons, attends all meetings pertaining to the Illinois State Library Talking Book and Braille Service, and is up to date on what equipment and outreach services are available to our patrons. Currently we have a link on our homepage to the Talking Book and Braille Service so that patrons themselves or their families can apply for equipment or obtain information about services that the organization provides. The library also has the Illinois Talking Book Outreach Center pamphlet available in our free materials kiosk area that is located in the foyer section of our library. Those patrons or family members that come into the library seeking Talking Book and Braille Service are given a packet with the application for services attached and also information about the organization.  Our library sees more patrons in need of visual help and as a result the library does have two magnifying machines and a magnifying glass that we loan out for those patrons who have vision needs.  We also have one tape reader and a sample tape from the Illinois State Library Talking Book and Braille Service that we were given so patrons can try out the device and see if it would be of benefit to them. Our library is considering adding another magnifying machine for in-house as the two that are available for loan are always checked out.  The library also supplies books on CD and digital audio downloads.  Our outreach librarian and other staff work with patrons and their family members to set up digital accounts and recommend CD audiobook titles to those patrons in need.
	Q10_plan_use[0]:   Half of our Per Capita money will be used for technology purchases and the other half will be split between the Adult and Youth collections for print and audiovisual materials.  Money used for technology helps us meet Technology Standards #11 and #12 by supporting us as we purchase, maintain, and replace hardware and software, as well as our connections to the Internet.  We will use Per Capita money to purchase more current telecommunications hardware and updated peripheral devices to enhance the user experience for both staff and public computers.  Per Capita money helps us improve our technological services, resources, and access as part of our planning cycle thus supporting us in meeting Technology Standard #14.  The Per Capita Grant money will be used for purchase current, relevant software for security concerns thus aiding us as we endeavor to protect the integrity, safety, and security of our technological environment as directed by Technology Standard 15.  Per Capita Grant money used for collections largely supports Collection Management and Resource Sharing Standard #12 since it is used to purchase added copies of best sellers and popular materials as well as for buying replacements for lost or worn out items with a high checkout rate.  Per Capita money is used for purchasing Large Print books, closed-captioned DVDs, and audiobooks on CDs so it helps us meet Collection Management and Resource Sharing Standard #7.




